
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 
 
AREA PLANS SUBCOMMITTEE B 
Wednesday, 5th April, 2006 
 
Place: Civic Offices, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Gary Woodhall, Democratic Services Assistant 
tel: 01992 564470 email:gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors M Colling (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), R Glozier, Mrs A Grigg, 
S Metcalfe, Mrs S Perry, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 1. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 

SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 
 

 2. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 16) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this 
agenda. 
 

 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 5 April 2006 
 

2 

 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 17 - 40) 
 

  (Head of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications as 
set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 7. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Head of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 5 April 2006 
 

3 

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 

 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. A map 
showing the venue will be attached to the agenda. 
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes and if you are not present by the time your item is considered, the 
Subcommittee will determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers 
presentations. The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either 
the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should 
the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they 
are required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Agenda Item 1

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Plans Subcommittee B Date: 8 March 2006
   

Place: Civic Offices, Epping Time: 7.30  - 8.25 pm 

Members
Present:

M Colling (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), Mrs A Grigg, Mrs S Perry, 
Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread and Mrs J H Whitehouse 

Other
Councillors: (none)

Apologies: R Glozier, S Metcalfe and J M Whitehouse 

Officers
Present:

B Land (Assistant Head of Planning and Economic Development) and 
G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer) 

59. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 

60. MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2006 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to the following 
amendments to minute 55 (Declarations of Interest): 

(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R 
Glozier declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by 
virtue of being a member of Theydon Bois Parish Council. The Councillor had 
determined that his interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1869/05 – Land adjacent Ivy Cottage, Coppice Row, Theydon 
Bois;

• EPF/2030/05 – Wansfell College, 30 Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois; 

• EPF/2031/05 – Former Caretaker’s House, Wansfell College, 30A 
Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois; and 

• EPF/2106/05 – 2 Morgan Crescent, Theydon Bois. 

(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs K 
Rush declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by 
virtue of being a former member of the Board of Governors for Wansfell 
College. The Councillor had determined that her interest was not prejudicial 

Agenda Item 2

Page 7



Area Plans Subcommittee B  8 March 2006 

2

and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and 
voting thereon: 

• EPF/2030/05 – Wansfell College, 30 Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois; and 

• EPF/2031/05 – Former Caretaker’s House, Wansfell College, 30A 
Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois.  

(g) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C 
Whitbread declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda. 
The Councillor had determined that his interest was prejudicial and would 
leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/2030/05 – Wansfell College, 30 Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois; and 

• EPF/2031/05 – Former Caretaker’s House, Wansfell College, 30A 
Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois. 

61. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs S Perry 
and C Whitbread declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by 
virtue of being a member of Epping Town Council. The Councillors had determined 
that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/0156/06 – 2 Western Avenue, Epping. 

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Stallan 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of the 
applicant being known to the Councillor. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/0156/06 – 2 Western Avenue, Epping. 

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs A Grigg 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being a 
member of North Weald Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that her 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1754/06 – Ruallan, High Road, North Weald. 

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs A Grigg 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of her 
husband being a member of North Weald Golf Club. The Councillor had determined 
that her interest was prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/2112/05 – North Weald Golf Club, Rayley Lane, North Weald. 

62. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

Page 8



Area Plans Subcommittee B  8 March 2006 

3

63. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 4 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 

64. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices.  

CHAIRMAN

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Report Item No: 1 

APPLICATION No: EPF/2188/05

SITE ADDRESS: The Stables 
Marcris House 
Coopersale Lane 
Theydon Bois 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 7NS 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conversion and extension of stables into residential 
accommodation. 

DECISION: GRANT 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

3 Details of foul and surface water disposal shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority before any work commences and the development shall be 
implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class A, B and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority. 

5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) have 
been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and these 
works shall be carried out as approved.  These details shall include, as appropriate, 
and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels 
or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle artefacts and 
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below 
ground.  Details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or 
establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, 
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers / densities where appropriate.  
If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 

Minute Item 63

Page 5Page 11



be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 

6 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the proposed driveway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior 
to the first occupation of the development. 

7 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

8 Before the building is occupied, a suitably surfaced area shall be provided, and 
thereafter maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, within the 
curtilage of the site to enable a vehicle to turn and leave the property in forward 
gear.  Details of this should be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. 

9 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the LPA and the completed phase 1 
investigation shall be submitted to the LPA upon completion for approval. 

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA before 
commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation 
proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to any remediation 
works being carried out. 

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the LPA for approval prior to first occupation of the 
completed development. 

Report Item No: 2 

APPLICATION No: EPF/0156/06

SITE ADDRESS: 2 Western Avenue 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 4JR 

PARISH: Epping

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of 3 bedroom detached house (Revised application). 

DECISION: REFUSE 

Page 6Page 12



REASONS: 

1 The proposed dwelling would appear cramped in the street scene and would thus be 
out of character at this prominent location, contrary to policy DBE1 of the adopted 
Local Plan. 

2 The proposed dwelling, due to its size and proximity to the rear boundary, would 
appear visually intrusive and dominant from no. 5 Centre Drive and thus contrary to 
policy DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan. 

3 The proposed development would exacerbate the problems of inadequate off-street 
parking in a road of considerable kerbside parking pressure and would thus be 
detrimental to highway safety contrary to policy T17 of the adopted Local Plan. 

Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1754/05

SITE ADDRESS: Ruallan
High Road 
North Weald Bassett 
Epping
Essex 

PARISH: North Weald 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Removal of agricultural occupancy condition. 

DECISION: REFUSE 

REASONS: 

       1 The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt where permission for new dwellings is 
not given except where such dwellings are essential to the needs of agriculture.  
Permission was originally granted for this dwelling based on this agricultural need.  
The Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that the market has been sufficiently 
tested on the correct basis and is therefore of the view that insufficient justification 
has been put forward to support the removal of the occupancy condition, contrary to 
policy GB17 of the adopted Local Plan. 

Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2112/05

SITE ADDRESS: North Weald Golf Club 
Rayley Lane 
North Weald

Page 7Page 13



PARISH: North Weald 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey side extension to existing club house and barn 
conversion to create bedroom accommodation for visitors and 
members of North Weald Golf Club. (Revised application) 

DECISION: GRANT 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development details of secure covered cycle 
parking and motorcycle parking provision shall be submitted to and agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed scheme shall be completed and made 
available before the first use of the hotel facility hereby approved and thereafter 
retained.

4 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the LPA and the completed phase 1 
investigation shall be submitted to the LPA upon completion for approval. 

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA before 
commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation 
proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to any remediation 
works being carried out. 

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the LPA for approval prior to first occupation of the 
completed development. 

5 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of development.  The assessment shall include 
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using 
Windes or other similar programme.  The approved measures shall be undertaken 
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall be adequately 
maintained.

Page 8Page 14



       6 The hotel hereby approved shall only be used to provide accommodation for 
members, or users of the North Weald Golf Club golfing and leisure facilities and not 
used for any other purpose unless previously approved in writing the Local Planning 
Authority.

Page 9Page 15



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘B’ 

5 April 2006 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/2262/05 1/2 Brook Road, Epping GRANT 19 

2. EPF/0034/06 5A Simon Campion Court, High 

Street, Epping 

GRANT 28 

3. EPF/0235/06 Aves, 221 High Street, Epping GRANT 32 

4. EPF/0236/06 Aves, 221 High Street, Epping GRANT 34 

5. EPF/0200/06 19 Woburn Avenue, Theydon 

Bois 

GRANT 37 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2262/05 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 & 2 Brook Road 

Epping 
Essex 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

APPLICANT: D Hunt Esq 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing dwellings and erection of 10 no. flats in 
two blocks with associated parking. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
structures including a barrier for the full length of the driveway to prevent vehicle 
incursion onto London Underground Ltd land, shall be agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and shall be erected before the occupation of any of the 
dwellings hereby approved and maintained in the agreed positions. 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first floor lounge/dining, east flank, Unit 3, No. 1 Brook Road shall be 
fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames, and shall be permanently retained 
in that condition. 
 

5 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 
 

6 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).   
 
If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 

Page 19



damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.  
 

7 No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, a plan indicating the existing hedge or 
hedges which are to be retained, the minimum heights at which they will be 
maintained and appropriate trees within the hedge or hedges which shall be retained 
and allowed to grow on.  The plan shall also show where the hedgerows are to be 
reinforced with further planting, details of which indicated in a timetable of 
implementation.  The hedges shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 

8 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 
 
The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 
 
The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 
  
The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 
 

9 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 
 
The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 
 
The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 20



The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 

10 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of development.  The assessment shall include 
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using 
Windes or other similar programme.  The approved measures shall be undertaken 
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall be adequately 
maintained. 
 

11 Construction work (which includes deliveries and other commercial vehicles to and 
from the site) shall only take place on site between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 hours 
Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays 
and Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

12 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of the 
number, location and design of cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be provided before any 
part of the development hereby approved is occupied and retained as such 
thereafter. 
 

13 The development hereby approved shall ensure that car parking facilities are 
available for people with disabilities in accordance with a scheme to be submitted in 
writing to the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme as approved shall be made 
available prior to the commencement of the development and shall be retained as 
such thereafter. 
 

14 Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted the existing crossover 
on Brook Road shall be removed and the footway reinstated to the satisfaction of the 
Highway Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 
Description of Proposal: 
  
Consent is being sought for demolition of the existing dwellings and the erection of 10 flats in two 
blocks with associated parking. This is a resubmitted application where the previous scheme was 
withdrawn due to concerns over access. The proposed block at No. 1 Brook Road would 
accommodate 5 two bedroom units and 1 one bedroom unit. No. 2 Brook Road would 
accommodate 4 two bedroom units. 14 car spaces have been provided to the rear, 10 of which are 
allocated to residents and 4 for visitors. Access would be via the new development at No. 61 
Allnutts Road, located rear of the site. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Deep plot located on the north side of Brook Road, some 15m east of the railway bridge. Currently 
the site is occupied by two detached dwellings. To the west lies the tube line and to the east a pair 
of semi detached dwellings. A three storey flat roof rear extension has been added to the nearest 
neighbour, No.3 Brook Road. The land rises not only from east to west but from south to north, 

Page 21



with the rear of the site being some 1.5m high than the front. Whilst it would appear that some 
trees have been removed, 4 large trees remain. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1090/91 – Construction of vehicular access and drive – Refused (inadequate sight lines) 
EPF/750/05 – Demolition of existing dwellings and erection of 10 no. flats in two blocks with 
associated parking – Withdrawn due to concerns regarding access of Brook Road 
EPF/1274/05 – Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 4 no. one bedroom flats (at No. 61 
Allnutts Road which is pertinent as it allows access through to the subject site) – Granted. 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Structure Plan Policies: 
BE1 – Urban Intensification 
H2 – Housing development- the sequential approach 
H3 – Location of Residential Development 
H4 – Development Form of New Residential Development 
T1 – Sustainable transport policy  
T3 – Promoting accessibility 
T6 – Walking and cycling 
T7 – Road hierarchy 
T12 – Vehicle parking 
 
Local Plan Policies: 
H3 – Residential development 
H8 – Housing location criteria 
DBE1 – Design of development 
DBE2 – Effect of new buildings on surrounding area 
DBE6 – Layout of car parking in new residential developments 
DBE8 – Amenity Space 
DBE9 – Amenity Considerations 
T14 – parking provision 
T17 – Highway safety 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues here relate to: 
 

1. Suitability of the site for development 
2. Impact on the streetscene, design, siting and landscaping 
3. Effect on the amenities of adjacent neighbouring properties 
4. Access, on-site parking and other highway issues 

 

Suitability of the site 
 
The site is within a residential area, and is currently occupied by two detached dwellings and 
ancillary outbuildings. This part of Epping is predominantly residential, and the site is not identified 
for any other alternative use in the adopted Local Plan. In light of this, and given the residential 
character of the surrounding area, redevelopment for residential is considered acceptable. 
 

Page 22



Both Government guidance (in the form of PPG3) and Structure Plan policies promote intensified 
development in urban areas together with higher densities (subject to acceptable design and 
appearance). The number of units proposed equates to a density of approximately 90 per hectare, 
a level considered appropriate under PPG3 for accessible central locations such as this. This 
proposal represents a good balance of more efficient use of a site and a development in character 
with the surrounding area. Although concern has been raised regarding the suitability of the site for 
flats, it is considered that located towards the railway line at the beginning of the road, other 
flatted/maisonette developments nearby the site would make a refusal on this ground hard to 
justify. 
 

Impact on the street scene, design and siting and landscaping 
 
Block 1 (Units 1-6) 
 
The proposed block at No. 1 Brook Road would be set back from the road by 3m and would be 3 
storeys high albeit that dormer windows would be used at 2nd floor level. The height would be 
some 10.2m.  Although it would be 1.7m higher than its proposed neighbour at No. 2 Brook Road, 
it will be approximately 2.3m higher given the rise in ground levels. However given its setback and 
its location adjacent to the railway embankment and bridge it is not considered so prominent as to 
dominate the streetscene.  
 
The depth of the building would be 20.6m although given that the depth of the site at this point is 
approximately 44m it would not appear cramped on the plot. There is another 8m to the side 
boundary and is set away from Block 2 by 2m. Although ground levels do rise from south to north, 
a section has been provided to show that ground levels will not be raised. 
 
The design is considered acceptable if a little bulky given it being 3 storey but as mentioned 
previously due to its location it would not appear unduly prominent. The design is varied with the 
use of gables and dormers to add some degree of interest to the building. 
 
Block 2 (Units 7-10) 
 
The second block would be 8.5m high by with a depth of around 17m. It would be set 2m away 
from Block 1 and 1100mm off the boundary with No. 3 Brook Road. When viewed from the street it 
would similar in design to a modest detached dwelling. Although its ridge would be approximately 
700mm higher than No. 3 it is not considered to be out of keeping with the existing Brook Road 
properties.  
 
The design is different to that of block 1 which adds visual interest to the scheme, with a mix of 
render, red brick and weatherboarding as the external materials proposed. 
 
Although concern has been raised that the flats would be out of scale and character with the 
surroundings, a variety of building styles are evident within the locality. Whilst the bulk is 
somewhat larger than that of the surrounding properties, the location is all-important here adjacent 
to the railway embankment. Much of block 1 would be hidden from view by block 2 when 
approaching the site from the east, with the bridge itself obscuring much of the western flank of the 
same block when approaching from the west.  
 
On balance this is considered to be acceptable, adding to the character and variety of the 
streetscene. Whilst the development is stylistically different to the Victorian terraces along Allnutts 
Road (to the rear) the design here is not considered so adverse as to justify as refusal. 
 

Page 23



Amenity Space is to be accommodated to the side and rear of the two blocks and is considered 
acceptable. Although it would appear that some trees have been removed on site, 4 large trees to 
the rear will remain complemented by additional planting. A privet hedge to the front of the site is 
proposed to ensure privacy to the landscaped areas. The development will be suitably softened by 
these additions. 
 
Effect on the amenities of the neighbouring properties 
 
Block 1 
 
No impact to the properties along Allnutts road due to acceptable separation and orientation. It 
would however be deeper than the proposed block 2 by some 8.4m. Whilst normally this difference 
is depth may be cause for concern given the siting and orientation of the two buildings it is not felt 
that the amenities of the future occupiers of Units 8 and 10 would be so compromised as to 
warrant a refusal here. The separation of 2m between the buildings would soften the impact and 
given that a loss of light into the rear of Block 2 would only occur in the late afternoon the effect 
here is considered acceptable. Although windows are proposed in the eastern flank of this block 
only one window (lounge at first floor) may give rise to some overlooking. As there is a second 
window to the front of the building the side window can be obscured as to overcome any potential 
loss of privacy given the window would face a bedroom. 
 
Block 2 
 
The depth is not considered unacceptable in relation to No. 3 Brook Road. There would be no 
material overlooking or loss of privacy with regard to this dwelling as there is good screening on 
the boundary and the fact that there are no windows in the facing flank within the main bulk of that 
dwelling. No impact on the amenities of the future occupiers of Block 1.  No impact on properties 
to the rear along Allnutts Road. 
 

Access, on site parking and other highway issues 
 
The proposal proposes 10 allocated car parking spaces with 4 additional spaces for visitors, which 
given current vehicle parking standards is considered to be acceptable as these set a maximum of 
one parking space per unit. Although concerns have been raised by a number of occupiers of 
properties along Allnutts Road as to the amount of parking availability within the area, it would be 
difficult to defend an objection on parking grounds on appeal, particularly with its good public 
transport links with Epping Underground station in walking distance of the site. An area for 
motorcycle parking has been proposed with cycle storage catered for under the staircase of the 
proposed flats. The development therefore accommodates more sustainable means of transport. 
 
Whilst it is considered that an increase in traffic movements would occur from the access being 
sited off Allnutts Road, there are no objections from the Council’s Highways department. However, 
it is envisaged that a number of potential occupiers who would be interested in purchasing here 
given its close proximity to the Underground network and the affordability of the units may not rely 
heavily on the use of a motor vehicle. This would be in line with current Government advise. 
However a site visit carried out in the evening showed that there were still a number of on street 
parking spaces available, especially along Crossing Road, if the worst-case scenario were to be 
realised and each unit had 2 vehicles. The upshot however is as mentioned previously, the 
proposal is in line with current Government guidance and would be difficult to justify a refusal on 
these grounds. 
 
Refuse collection is proposed via Brook Road and the gate fronting Brook Road is also a point of 
access for emergency services. 

Page 24



Conclusion: 
 
Whilst it is appreciated that the bulk and mass of the proposed block 1 is larger than other 
properties in the vicinity, given it’s against a railway, this is considered acceptable as it will not 
appear as conspicuous as it would if the site was more prominent. The access and parking of 
Allnutts Road is a contentious issue from the point of view of a number of nearby residents 
however there are no objections from Highways regarding the access and the parking is in line 
with current Government advice. The density of units proposed again accords with government 
guidance and the impact on neighbouring properties is not so adverse as to warrant a refusal. 
Therefore, an approval is recommended. 
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL  – No objections 
 
72 ALLNUTTS ROAD – Object to the access being via Allnutts Road. Road is narrow and 
residents have to park on pavement; increase in traffic raises safety issues; size of development 
inappropriate for small road to cope with. Surely development would increase traffic flow to an 
unmanageable level. 
 
60 ALLNUTTS ROAD – Object that the buildings are three storeys high; out of scale and overlook 
neighbouring properties; may affect residents privacy; parking; traffic and overcrowding issues; 
Allnutts Road being used as access is concern; development may cause issues around road 
safety and problems for pedestrians; increase traffic will compound problem of parking; likely flats 
will have also one/two cars per residence, 10 or 12 parking spaces will be inadequate causing 
overfill. Not environmentally friendly to demolish buildings; should push for more sustainable 
solutions. Energy required in demolition and rebuild would be greater than to extend existing. 
 
74 ALLNUTTS ROAD – Object that new flats will create level of traffic Allnutts Road cannot cope 
with; already congested; danger to road users especially young children; change in footprint; no 
precedent; excessive development may follow; no well related, in scale and location to existing 
development. 
 
57 ALLNUTTS ROAD – Object that when development of 61 Allnutts Road was mooted raised 
concerns then that this was par of larger development to provide access road for Brook Road; 
scheme will dramatically increase traffic flow past our home; change nature of street; purposely 
moved to this end of road as tube would protect us from being through road; development would 
add an additional 14 homes most of which will have a car; more than double traffic past our house; 
object on grounds of traffic, noise, pollution, road safety with children playing outside; 
inappropriate location 
 
33 BRIDGE HILL – Object on safety grounds; inadequate parking; buildings out of keeping; create 
more traffic 
 
53 ALLNUTTS ROAD - Object to access from Allnutts Road; will create “havoc”; intolerable to 
residents as road does not have capacity for more cars; major safety issue; Allnutts is jam packed; 
where will remainder of cars go? God forbid is a fire engine eve had to come down the road. 
 
59 ALNUTTS ROAD – Object that a large block of flats will be out of character; this type of 
application will become commonplace; nature of Epping will be changed; increase in traffic; not 
enough parking. 
 

Page 25



47 ALLNUTTS ROAD – Object as access will be from Allnutts Road; increase likelihood of road 
accident; traffic noise and pollution levels increase; not enough parking provision; already over run 
with cars. 
 
70 ALNUTTS ROAD – Object to planned access; cul-de-sac; quiet street; Allnutts Road will 
become impossibly busy; hazardous; problem for emergency services; problem for refuse trucks; 
why should residents of Allnutts Road suffer? Loss of privacy; constant stream of traffic; in danger 
of destroying character of, and charm of Epping. 
 
76 ALNUTTS ROAD  - Object to a dominant block of flats and through road; many of us bought 
our properties due to this quiet road must be a limit to what these property developers are doing. 
 
3 ALNUTTS ROAD – Object to increase in traffic; development will cause a danger to pedestrians 
especially children walking to playschool in Allnutts road; when parking is full will park in Allnutts 
road; development will set precedent for future inappropriate developments. 
 
7 STEWARDS GREEN ROAD – Object to increased noise; increased traffic congestion; increased 
parking problems; inappropriate with respect to rural environment. 
 
30 SUNNYSIDE ROAD – Object that the streets in the vicinity could not cope; increase in traffic 
could put children and parents at risk; proposal out of character with other properties; ruin rural 
appearance; too urban. 
 
8 BROOK ROAD – Confirm support to removal of access onto Brook road; please with design; 
appears to fit in. 
 
3 BROOK ROAD – Confirm support removal of access onto Brook Road will improve safety and 
parking; no overlooking; building design in keeping. 
 
61F ALLNUTTS ROAD – No objection, as no visual impact on my property; well planned 
landscape scheme; no detrimental effect to my property or surrounding area. 
 
5t ALLNUTTS ROAD – No objection as it would have no adverse effect to my property or 
surroundings so am able to support the development 
 
66 PRINCES AVENUE, WOODFORD – In process of purchasing 61E Allnutts Road and have no 
objection as proposed buildings will be obscured by trees and impact of increased traffic will be 
minimal; hope that many of the residents will be first time buyers who will benefit from short walk to 
station for their commute. 
 
61C ALLNUTTS ROAD – Confirm support and am aware of increased traffic but I think this will be 
minimal. 
 
61D ALLNUTTS ROAD – Initially concerned in regards to possible parking problems along Allnutts 
Road and general increase in traffic however noting amount of parking provided and no through 
road onto Brook Road I now support the application. 
 
  
 
 
 

Page 26



 

 

E
P

P
IN

G
 F

O
R

S
E

T 
C

O
 C

O
N

S
T

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x x

x

x

x

x

x

x x

x
x

xxx
x

x

x

SU
N

N
YS

ID
E 

R
O

AD
SU

N
N

YS
ID

E R
O

AD

61.0m
BM

63 13m

SL

SL

65
.2

m

678

1

8

9
7

7a

61

59

1

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

 
1 

Application Number: EPF/2262/05 

Site Name: 1 & 2 Brook Road, Epping. 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250 

Page 27



 
Report Item No: 2  
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0034/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 5A Simon Campion Court 

High Street 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AU 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

APPLICANT: A Stevenette 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from A1 retail to A2 Estate Agency. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITION: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

 
 
 
Description of Proposal: 
  
Consent is being sought for the change of use from an A1 retail unit to an A2 Estate Agency. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Retail unit within Simon Campion Court, a grade II Listed Building within the Epping Conservation 
Area, located on the south east side of the High Street. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/938/91 – Installation of new shopfront - Refused 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Government Advice 
Planning Policy Statement 6 – Town centres 
Structure Plan 
TCR3 – Town Centres 
Local Plan 
HC6 – Impact on Conservation Area 
HC12 – Impact on Listed Building 
STC7 - Change of Use within shopping parades 

Page 28



DBE9 – Amenity 
Local Plan Alterations – Redeposit July 2005 
TC3 – Town Centre Function 
TC4 – Non-Retail Frontage 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issue is whether the change of use from an A1 retail to an A2 estate agents is 
acceptable for this location and whether it would have an adverse impact on the Listed Building, 
Conservation Area and neighbouring properties amenity. 
 

Change of Use 
 
The main issue therefore is whether the change of use from A1 to a mixed A2 use is acceptable 
here.  
 
Policy STC7 of the adopted Local Plan states that permission would be granted provided the 
premises are at ground floor level in a primary shopping frontage and development would not 
result in - 
 

• The amount of non-retail frontage in the primary shopping frontage exceeding 20% 
• More than two adjacent units being in non-retail use 

 
The current non-retail percentage within the High Road’s primary shopping frontage stands at 
31.6%, clearly above the allowance of 20% as stated in the Local Plan. If this unit was A2, this 
figure would rise a little to 32.4% As it stands the application would be contrary to Policy STC7. 
 
However it should be pointed out that Emerging Policy TC4 of the Local plan alterations seeks to 
address the current situation. TC4 states that the Council will grant planning permission for new 
non-retail uses within key retail frontage provided it would not result in non-retail exceeding 30%. 
The key retail frontage areas have been amended, and current figures show that non-retail in 
Epping High Street accounts for 29% of this area. If an A2 use were allowed this figure would 
change to 29.8%. Therefore, an additional non-retail use in this location would not exceed this 
30% figure and would comply with this emerging policy. 
 
This figure has been altered to reflect government guidance within Planning Policy Statement 6, 
which urges local authorities to encourage diversification of town centre uses. This is because 
different but complementary uses can widen the range and quality of activities thereby making 
town centres more attractive to local residents, shoppers and visitors and hence contributing to 
their vitality and viability. It is not considered that an A2 use here would be so adverse to the 
vitality and viability of the High Street to warrant a refusal here. The current about to be 
superseded 1998 Local Plan pre-dates this government guidance. 
 
Advice from the Council’s Forward Planning department is that we are only 4 months away from 
adoption of the emerging revised Local Plan and therefore significant weight can be attached to it. 
The emerging plan has been heard at Public Inquiry with the only objections regarding Town 
Centres referring to Loughton. Therefore it is the opinion of Forward Planning that it would be 
difficult to defend this decision on appeal considering that the emerging policy is much more in line 
with current Government and District Council thinking regarding Town Centres. 
 
Furthermore the shop front to this unit does not lend itself well to an A1 retail unit. There is little 
fenestration in which to see into the shop and there is only a small amount of storage space. 

Page 29



These points are both argued by the landlords agent submitted as part of a supporting statement, 
who has further asserted that the unit was marketed for 3 months without a suitable retailer being 
interested. In addition to this, an application was made in 1991 to alter this shopfront however was 
refused due to its adverse impact on the historic character of the Listed Building. Upon discussion 
with the Council’s Listed Building Advisor, it would be unlikely that an alteration to this shop front 
would be recommended for approval by him considering its prominence within the High Street, 
especially as one was refused back in 1991. 
 
Whilst there are currently 6 estate agents within Epping Town Centre and it is argued by objectors 
that there are already too many this is not considered a valid planning reason for refusal. The 
issue here is specifically the loss of an A1 unit. It is not the role of Local Planning Authority to 
decide specifically what type of business is located where but whether or not the change of use is 
acceptable unless there are other planning reasons to refuse. Given the above and most 
importantly the emerging policy a change of use here is felt to be acceptable. 

 

Impact on Listed Building and Conservation Area 

There will be no harm to the listed building or character of the conservation area. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Whilst strictly not in accordance with Local Plan Policy STC7, the proposal complies with the 
emerging First Deposit policyTC4. Should this application be refused, Members should be aware 
that by time an appeal was lodged and heard, the Planning Inspector would be judging the 
proposal against the emerging policy. This is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL - Object to this proposal and were concerned at the loss of further retail space. 
Committee did not feel that further estate agencies would be beneficial to Epping High Street. 
 
7 SIMON CAMPION COURT, HIGH STREET - Support this application 
 
240a HIGH STREET - Object as there are already enough Estate Agents in High Street; need 
more retail outlets to survive as a High Street 
 
311 HIGH STREET - Object stating that there are too many estate agents; application not in 
interests of existing businesses, or local residents. 
 
2 BEULAH ROAD - Objects stating that Epping needs more retail; no shortage of A2 units; already 
have 6 estate agents; negative signal granting A2. 
 
90 FOREST DRIVE, THEYDON BOIS - Objects stating that there are too many estate agents; 
need more retail. 
 
 

Page 30



 

 

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x
x x

x
x

x x
x
x

x

x

x

x x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x
x

x

x
xxx

x
x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

xx

x

x

x
x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

xx x x

x
x
x

x x

x
xx
x x

x

x

x

x
x

x
x x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x
x

x x

x

x x

x

x

xx

xxx
x

x

x

x

x

x

x
xx

x

GROVE LA

HEMNALL

STR
EET

BUTTERCROSS LANE

HIG
H

STR
EET

STAR LANE

104.2m

108.5m

BM
 1

08
.1

9m

108.2m

107.6m

TC
Bs

Cottage

The Rectory

St Helen's
Court

Vicarage

El Sub Sta

5

258

254246
319

32
3

Carlton

Vi
nc

en
t

Ho
us

e

Wrights

House

Sealand

Wastells

House

236

1 t
o 8

30
9

PH

29
3

29
5

29
7

303 305

30
7

Bk

27
9

28
1

28
3

287

291

277

289

Surgery

230

226

222
224

218

26
5

SortingOffice

267 26
9

27
1

27
5

LSP

House

Post Office

il Offices

Tk

Cou
rt

1 to 5

Kendall Lodge

Middle

27

51

House

Mansard3

224b

2

224a

Tk

214
210

216
212

208

2a

Sta

Sim
on

Cam
pio

n

Magistrates
Court

Pol

PH

204

5

257 25
9

1

4

5

Pond

**

*EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

 
2 

Application Number: EPF/34/06 

Site Name: 5A Simon Campion Court, High Street, 
Epping 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250 

Page 31



 
Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0235/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Aves, 221 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4BL 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Dulley 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Installation of and new shop front. (Resubmitted application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Prior to commencement of development details of proposed joinery work at 
appropriate scales between 1:1 and 1:20 shall be submitted to and agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be completed in 
accordance with the agreed details. 
 

3 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

4 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 15 March 2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
Installation of a new shop front.  The works include the removal of the existing bow window and 
doorway and the installation of a new painted softwood shop front with central door and 800mm 
high stall riser with moulding details.  
 
 
Description of Site:  
   
Grade II listed building in use as an optician, on the western side of Epping High Street with retail 
units on either side. 

Page 32



 
Relevant History: 
  
The existing unusual frontage, which has a bow window with a separate entrance door was 
approved in 1961. 
In 1996 a replacement timber shop front was approved but was never implemented. 
The last planning application was withdrawn prior to a decision being made (EPF/235/06).   
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
HC7 - Development in Conservation Areas. 
HC10 - Works to listed buildings 
DBE2 - Shop fronts 
 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
This is a listed building within the conservation area and within the Town Centre.  The main 
concerns are the impact of the works on the listed building and on the character of the 
conservation area. 
 
A separate Listed Building application has been submitted and is next on the agenda. 
 
The design of the new shop front is simple and in keeping with the character and appearance of 
the building.  The plans have been amended in consultation with the Listed Buildings Advisor to 
ensure that the design is in scale with the building and the adjoining shop fronts.  
 
Policy DBE12 states that original shop fronts and their surrounds should be retained and the Town 
Council have objected, concerned that the application does not comply with this.  However it is 
clear from our records and from photographs of the site that the existing shop front is not an 
original feature and that prior to 1961 there was a timber shop front and fascia at the building.  The 
existing bow window is not an original feature of the listed building and is not considered worthy of 
retention. 
 
On this basis it is considered that the application in accordance with the policies of the Local plan 
and the application is recommended accordingly. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
TOWN COUNCIL – No objection to the internal alterations but do object to the removal of the 
existing shop front.  This approach does not comply with Local Plan Policy DBE12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0236/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Aves, 221 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4BL 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Dulley 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Grade II listed building application for internal alterations and 
new shop front. (Resubmitted application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years, beginning with the date on which the consent was granted. 
 

2 Prior to commencement of development details of the proposed joinery work at 
scales of 1:1 and 1:20 shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The development shall be completed in accordance with the 
agreed details. 
 

3 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 15 March 2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Description of Proposal:  
  
Grade II listed building application for new shop front and internal alterations to ground floor to 
provide raised timber floor above existing floor at the rear of the shop, to create new reception 
area and wheelchair ramp and better use of internal space.  The works also include the removal of 
some stud and blockwork walls and the insertion of a new stud wall. 
 
 
Description of Site:  
   
Grade II listed building located on the western side of Epping High Street. 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
Relevant History: 
  
LB/EPF/878/96 - Listed building application for installation of new shop front - Approved 28/10/96 
but never implemented. 
  
 
Policies Applied 
 
HC10 - Works to listed buildings. 
 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issue is whether the proposals will maintain the character and integrity of the listed 
building. 
 
There is little or no historic fabric left inside the ground floor of the building and there are no 
objections to the current proposals to open up the space as practically none of the modern 
partition walls relate to any original spatial division of the historic building. 
 
With regard to the shop front, again the existing front wall window and doorway are not original 
and do not relate well to the remainder of the front elevation.  The loss of these features and their 
replacement with a traditional style timber painted shop front with stall riser better related to the 
fenestration of the upper floors is considered to be in accordance with Policy HC10 of the adopted 
Local Plan. 
 
The application is recommended for approval.  
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
TOWN COUNCIL – No objection to the internal arrangements as proposed but object to the 
removal of the existing shop front, which does not comply with Local plan Policy DBE12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

 

E
P

P
IN

G
 E

D

E
P

P
IN

G
 H

E
M

N
A

LL W
A

R

x

x x

x
x

x
x

x
x
x
xx

x x
x
x
x
x

x

x
x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

xx

x

x

x

x x

x

x

x
x

x

x

xx x

x

x

x
x
x

x
x

xx
x

x

x
x

xx
x

x
x

x xxx
xx

x

x

x
x

x
x

x

x
x

x
x

x
x x

x

x

x

x
x x
x

x

xx x

xx

x x x
x

x

x
x

x

x

x
x

xx
x

x

x

x

x

x

x
xx

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x
xx

x
x

x

x

x
x

x

x

xxx

x

x

x xx
x xxxxx

x

x
x

x
x

x

xx xxxx
x

xx
x

x

xx
xx xx

xxxxx

x

x x

xxx

x

x

x x

x

x

B 
13

93

B 
13

93

Twankhams
Alley

107.6m

107.6m

M
10

6.
95

m

10
6.

7m

TC

TC
Bs

El

Sub Sta

Car Park

226

222
224

218

26
5

O

267 26
9

27
1

27
5

La
ure

ls

Tk

214
210

216
212

208

2a

W
or

ks

Br
ie

lan
ds

Rosslyn

10

6

PC

12

10
b

10
a

176

172

23
1

PH

204

221 223

22
5

22
9

to
23

5

257 25
9

217 198

196

186

219

18
3

173

17
9

19
1

19
5

Bank

18
9

18
5

18
7

164

St John
The Baptist
Church

170
174

Library

5
Falconry Court

**

**EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

 
3 & 4 

Application Number: EPF/235/06 & LB/EPF/236/06 

Site Name: 221, High Street, Epping. 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250 

Page 36



 
Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0200/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 19 Woburn Avenue 

Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7JR 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: A France 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed room in roofspace and dormer window to rear 
(Revised application). 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

 
 
 
This item is before the Committee at the request of Councillor Mrs Whitehouse. 
 
 
 
Description of proposal: 
     
Loft conversion and flat roofed rear dormer measuring 2.8m x 3m by 1.7m high, with a ‘Juliet’ style 
balcony. 
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Mid terrace house on a rectangular plot. There is a mature tree screen at the eastern end of the 
rear garden. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1777/05 - Loft conversion and rear dormer - Refused 
 

Page 37



 
Polices Applied: 
 
DBE 9 & 10 – Amenity and Design 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application are its effects on the street scene, design and amenities of the 
neighbouring properties, and whether this application has overcome the reasons for the 2005 
refusal which where the dormer being out of character with the dwelling and terrace due to size 
and design. . 
  
1. Impact on Street scene 

- This proposal would be erected on the rear roof slope of the property, which is generally 
less sensitive that the front roof scape.  

- In this proposal the dormer has been reduced in size and scale, and repositioned to allow a 
great distance to the party wall on the southern flank. 

- This reduction in size results in a scheme, which causes no harm to the appearance of the 
terrace or street scene.  

 
2. Design 

- The proposed dormer is more sympathetic than the original design and integrates 
acceptably with the existing rear roof. 

- This design will have not have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of this 
building.  

- Materials can be conditioned to be appropriate to the existing building.  
 
3. Impact on Neighbours 

- There would be some loss of sunlight to the velux windows on the adjacent rear roof slope 
of No 17 Woburn Avenue, but this would not justify a refusal. 

- Objectors are concerned about the potential overlooking from the Juliet style balcony. It is 
the case that the ‘balcony’ in reality only allows the windows to be opened, and would not 
result in any more overlooking than a window. It would undoubtedly result in some further 
overlooking of the rear garden areas of the terrace, but as these are already overlooked by 
the first floor windows this would not result in any further adverse impact. 

- The nearest property to the east is 25 Hornbeam Close which is some 30m to the east, and 
screened by a mature treeline. There would be no adverse overlooking of this property.  

 
4. Other Matters 

- An objector has commented that the submitted plan is inaccurate due to a hipped roof roof 
on a two storey rear projection being shown on the plans as a gable end roof. Whilst this is 
the case it causes no harm to any parties case in this application.  

 
Conclusion 
 
For the reasons outlined above, the application is recommended for approval. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL - No objection  
 
21 WOBURN AVENUE – Object, unattractive development, balcony will create overlooking and 
loss of privacy 

Page 38



17 WOBURN AVENUE – Object, is out of character, will result in a loss of light to our bedroom, 
materials will be out of keeping, balcony will overlook our garden resulting in a loss of privacy.  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TH
E

Y
D

O
N

 B
O

IS
 W

A
R

D

x

x
x

x
x

xx

x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x
x x

x

x
x

xx
x

x

x

x

x
x x

x
x

x x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x
x

x

x
x

xx

x

x

x

xxxxxx

xxx

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x
x

x

x xxx x
x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x
x

xx
x

x
x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x
x

xx

xx

x x
x

x
x

x

x

xx
x

x
x

x
x

x

x x

x

x

x
x

xx
xx

x
x

x

x

x
x

x

xx
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x

THE GREEN

HORNBEAM CLOSE

W
OBURN A

VENUE

OAD

FB

13

19

21

4
2a

2
2

8

Chestnut

Cottages

1

Dossetts Retreat

1

2

Forest

Reach

Po
nd

Park
Lo

dg
e

25

Brookfield

Vi
ew

12

14

Elm
bec

12

Woburn House

2

8

25

11

View

Frank Foster

House 1

7

Green

50

49
24

38

39

44

42

7

63

77

rner

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

 
5 

Application Number: EPF/200/06 

Site Name: 19, Woburn Avenue, Theydon Bois. 

Scale of Plot: 1:1250 

Page 40


